

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES MANAGEMENT PROJECT (SFMP)

Training on Gender Mainstreaming Strategy for MOFAD/FC Directors



MARCH, 2018





This publication is available electronically in the following locations:

 The Coastal Resources Center

 http://www.crc.uri.edu/projects_page/ghanasfmp/

 Ghanalinks.org

 https://ghanalinks.org/elibrary

 search term: SFMP

 USAID Development Clearing House

 https://dec.usaid.gov/dec/content/search.aspx

 search term: Ghana SFMP

 For more information on the Ghana Sustainable Fisheries Management Project, contact:

USAID/Ghana Sustainable Fisheries Management Project Coastal Resources Center Graduate School of Oceanography University of Rhode Island 220 South Ferry Rd. Narragansett, RI 02882 USA Tel: 401-874-6224 Fax: 401-874-6920 Email: info@crc.uri.edu

Citation: Kutin R., Blankson, P. (2018). Training on Gender Mainstreaming Strategy for MOFAD/FC Directors, 2018. The USAID/Ghana Sustainable Fisheries Management Project (SFMP). Narragansett, RI: Coastal Resources Center, Graduate School of Oceanography, University of Rhode Island and SNV Netherlands Development Organisation. GH2014_ GEN022_SNV. 21 pp.

Authority/Disclaimer:

Prepared for USAID/Ghana under Cooperative Agreement (AID-641-A-15-00001), awarded on October 22, 2014 to the University of Rhode Island, and entitled the USAID/Ghana Sustainable Fisheries Management Project (SFMP).

This document is made possible by the support of the American People through the United States Agency for International Development (USAID). The views expressed and opinions contained in this report are those of the SFMP team and are not intended as statements of policy of either USAID or the cooperating organizations. As such, the contents of this report are the sole responsibility of the SFMP team and do not necessarily reflect the views of USAID or the United States Government.

Cover photo: Group picture of the participants and facilitators (Credit: SNV)

Detailed Partner Contact Information:

USAID/Ghana Sustainable Fisheries Management Project (SFMP) 10 Obodai St., Mempeasem, East Legon, Accra, Ghana

Telephone: +233 0302 542497 Fax: +233 0302 542498

Raymond Babanawo Chief of Party **Enoch Appiah** Kofi Agbogah Perfectual Labik Mary Asare Brian Crawford Ellis Ekekpi

Deputy Chief of Party Senior Fisheries Advisor **Communications Officer** M&E Officer Project Manager, CRC **USAID AOR**

Hen Mpoano 38 J. Cross Cole St. Windy Ridge Takoradi, Ghana +233 312 020 701 Kofi.Agbogah kagbogah@henmpoano.org Stephen Kankam skankam@henmpoano.org

SNV Netherlands Development Organisation #161, 10 Maseru Road, E. Legon, Accra, Ghana +233 30 701 2440 Andre de Jager adejager@snvworld.org

Friends of the Nation Parks and Gardens Adiembra-Sekondi, Ghana +233 312 046 180 **Donkris** Mevuta Kyei Yamoah info@fonghana.org

Email: raybabs.sfmp@crcuri.org Email: <u>eappiah.sfmp@crcuri.org</u> Email: kagbogah@henmpoano.org Email: perfectual.sfmp@crcuri.org Email: mary.sfmp@crcuri.org Email: bcrawford@uri.edu Email: eekekpi@usaid.gov

Resonance Global (Formerly SSG Advisors) 182 Main Street Burlington, VT 05401 +1 (802) 735-1162 Thomas Buck tom@ssg-advisors.com

CEWEFIA B342 Bronyibima Estate Elmina, Ghana +233 024 427 8377 Victoria C. Koomson cewefia@gmail.com

Development Action Association (DAA) Darkuman Junction, Kaneshie Odokor Highway Accra, Ghana +233 302 315894 Lydia Sasu daawomen@daawomen.org

For additional information on partner activities:

CRC/URI:	http://www.crc.uri.edu
CEWEFIA:	http://cewefia.weebly.com/
DAA:	http://womenthrive.org/development-action-association-daa
Friends of the Nation:	http://www.fonghana.org
Hen Mpoano:	http://www.henmpoano.org
Resonance Global:	https://resonanceglobal.com/
SNV:	http://www.snvworld.org/en/countries/ghana

ACRONYMS

FC	Fisheries Commission.
GM	Gender Mainstreaming.
GMS	Gender Mainstreaming Strategy.
M&E	Monitoring and Evaluation.
MOFA	Ministry of Food and Agriculture.
MOFAD	Ministry of Fisheries and Aquaculture Development.
NAFPTA	National Fish Processors and Traders Association.
SNV	Netherlands Development Cooperation.
USAID	United States Agency for International Development.
WARFP	West Africa Regional Fisheries Project.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACRONYMS	iii
TABLE OF CONTENTS	iv
LIST OF FIGURES	iv
LIST OF TABLES	iv
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	v
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	1
1. INTRODUCTION	2
1.1 Aim and Objectives of the Workshop	2
1.2 Approach for Delivering the Training Workshop	2
2. ACTUAL DELIVERY OF WORKSHOP CONTENT	3
2.1 Brainstorming Session	3
2.2 Presentation of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS)	4
2.3 Action Plan of the GMS and Group Exercise	5
GROUP 1	5
GROUP 2	5
GROUP 3	6
3. LESSONS LEARNED	7
4. CONCLUSION	8
ANNEXES	9
ANNEX 1. GMS ACTION PLAN	9
ANNEX 2. GROUP WORK QUESTIONS AND PICTURES	14
ANNEX 3. TERMINOLOGIES USED IN THE GENDER MAINSTREAMING STRATEGY (GMS)	

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.	Cross section of participants	14
Figure 2.	Participants in a group work session	14

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.	GMS ACTION PLAN	
----------	-----------------	--

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

SNV acknowledges the support and collaboration of MOFAD and FC in organizing this training workshop. The leadership role of the Director of FC, the Divisional Head for Post-Harvest and the Gender Focal Person cannot be underestimated.

SNV is also grateful for the enormous support provided by Partners, the Chief of Party for SFMP and the communications unit.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SNV under the USAID/Ghana SFMP is working with MOFAD and the Fisheries Commission (FC) to mainstream gender into the fisheries sector. Gender-blind policy, lacking evidence and sex-aggregated data, as well as regulatory environments have been identified as key among the constraints that block women from fully tapping into available economic opportunities. To help address this problem, MOFAD has developed a Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) with an Action Plan for the Fisheries Sector. The overall goal of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) is:

Empowering actors in the fisheries sector, in particular women through their active participation in fisheries management and decision making, facilitating their access to and control of resources and opportunities for an enhanced valuation of their contributions along the value chain for an equitable and sustainable development of the fisheries sector.

The Ministry of Fisheries and Aquaculture Development (MOFAD) Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) serves as the framework for promoting gender responsiveness in the fisheries sector in Ghana, under the leadership of MOFAD and the Fisheries Commission (FC). It builds on ongoing gender mainstreaming efforts of MOFAD, by identifying existing gaps and proposing strategic interventions to enhance greater accountability to the promotion of women's rights and gender equality in all the stages of the fisheries value chain in Ghana (MOFAD, 2016). This is in line with Ghana's commitment towards promoting women's rights and gender equality in decision–making and all socio-economic sectors.

This report contains information on a workshop organised within the framework of the USAID/GHANA Sustainable Fisheries Management Project being implemented through the Ministry of Fisheries and Aquaculture Development (MOFAD). It was organised around the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) for the Leadership of the Ministry of Fisheries' and Aquaculture Development (MOFAD) and the Fisheries Commission (FC) from March 14-15, 2018 at the Forest Hotel, Dodowa, Eastern region of Ghana. The workshop aimed to secure the buy-in of key decision-makers in the sector, in terms of how the GMS can be implemented.

1. INTRODUCTION

As part of the USAID/GHANA Sustainable Fisheries' Management Project, a training workshop was organised from the 14-15 March, 2018 for the leadership of MOFAD and FC. The workshop sought to sensitise the directors and all divisional heads within MOFAD and FC to promote understanding and ownership of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy for the fisheries sector and to facilitate the integration of the strategic actions in their operations.¹

The Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) was approved by the former Minister, Hon. Sherry Ayittey and had already been budgeted for under the WARFP, for implementation. Even though some Zonal officers had already been trained on implementing the strategy, it became necessary to have the directors understand the strategy in order to enhance oversight responsibilities.² The report is divided into six (6) sections. After the introduction, the aim and objectives of the workshop is provided followed by the process used for delivering the training. The fourth section discusses the actual delivery of the training while section five (5) outlines the key takeaways. The final section provides a few concluding remarks with Annexes attached.

1.1 Aim and Objectives of the Workshop

The aim of the workshop was to assist the national and regional staff of MOFAD/FC to better identify, understand and explain existing gaps between women and men; and the relevance of gender norms and power relations within the fisheries sector so as to facilitate their work in ensuring that the GMS achieve its intended outcomes. The specific objectives are as follows:

- To develop a training plan with all necessary training materials for the conduct of training of twenty-five national and regional MOFAD/FC staff on the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS).
- To provide information and sensitise participants on the gender mainstreaming strategy (GMS).
- To gain the acceptance of the leadership of MOFAD and FC towards the implementation of the GMS.

1.2 Approach for Delivering the Training Workshop

A participatory and gender responsive approach that allowed interactive discussion of critical gender issues in the fisheries sector as a whole was utilised. This promoted an enabling and empowering atmosphere for learning and sharing. All participants had an equal chance to participate actively and contribute their views and perspectives to the discussions. The training sessions involved the utilisation of the following methods: brainstorming, buzz groups, presentations, group work, and plenary discussions.

¹ In the year 2017, the Consultants had the opportunity of working with focal persons of the Fisheries Commission and other stakeholders to develop the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy for the fisheries sector in Ghana. The GMS has already been shared with MOFAD/FC

2. ACTUAL DELIVERY OF WORKSHOP CONTENT

There were three (3) key components of the presentations. First, there was a brainstorming session followed by the actual presentation of the GMS. The third component was the presentation of the Action Plan of the GMS which was directly linked to a group exercise. Each of the components was accompanied by plenary discussions.

2.1 Brainstorming Session

The programme started with a brainstorming session on *"What do you know about Gender issues?"* The objective here was to obtain a sense of the knowledge and experience of the directors on gender issues. Responses were expected to provide the backdrop on the presentation of the GMS itself. Responses given by the participants were insightful as there was clear evidence of knowledge and experience of gender issues. While some responses focused on personal experiences, others were derived from the fisheries spaces where they occupied. Below is a summary of the responses obtained:

- Gender issues are aimed at ensuring equity and equality for all groups of men and women especially those who are usually marginalised and excluded.
- Males and females are of different biological constitution. However, both must be considered as equal and the capabilities of each must be regarded and nurtured for elimination of vulnerability and inequality.
- Equitability in both sexes.
- Giving equal opportunity to male and female.
- Roles played by male and female.
- It is about male and female and how they can be treated equally.
- Fairness in all endeavours for both males and females.
- In giving opportunities to females thought not to have been given equal opportunities like men; there should be equity.
- Giving equal opportunities to both male and female in all activities.
- Equality of men and women in all spheres of life.
- Giving equal opportunities to both males and females in all endeavours. Equal treatment to both sexes. Discrimination should be eliminated from the dealings with women and men.
- Roles played by various sexes.

After the brainstorming session, there was a plenary discussion to try to break the definitions down to practical day to day experiences. Through the plenary discussion the following points were agreed upon:

- It was established that men and women are different in a number of ways. In particular, it was agreed that the differences are mainly biological which have been translated into social life to create inequalities between them in all the different spheres of life.
- The fisheries sector was referred to as a site where the issue of inequality requires that some interventions are put in place to secure some opportunities for women in order to bridge the gender gaps that such inequalities created.
- It was also agreed that gender inequality often created situations where women experienced different and higher forms of vulnerability.
- There are inequalities in the society. Society originally discriminated against women. This discrimination also occurs among women themselves. It can also occur among men as a group.

- People think that women are the only ones who are affected by the concept of gender inequality.
- Gender also intersects tradition and culture.

2.2 Presentation of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS)

After the discussions, the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) for the Fisheries sector was presented. Participants were then offered a chance to make comments, ask questions and make contributions on the presentation. Below is a summary of issues arising from the plenary discussion on the presentation of the GMS:

- Some participants were of the view that the men carry out the riskier part of the work in the fisheries industry and that the women merely process and sell fish, making more profits than the men. It was however agreed that going to sea is a major component of fishing along the fisheries value chain and the fact that only men are involved in it is a pointer to the gender division of labour rather than an expression of men's involvement in riskier tasks.
- There was also a discussion on the issue of women having more money and therefore responsible for financing the fishing expeditions of men. While women may be the ones who finance fishing expeditions, it was agreed that women tend to focus on their businesses more, thereby they are able to accumulate more. With specific reference to the catch of the day, it was also agreed that women often have no choice in accepting whatever fish is brought from the sea since they cannot afford to lose their investments in fishing expeditions. This therefore meant that policy makers have to examine the dynamics and interactions between women and men in the fishing industry on a continuous basis in order to provide the appropriate policy responses to emerging gender issues.
- Some participants were of the view that the women exploit the fishermen. This assertion was based on the allegation that the women usually undervalue a given quantity of fish and pay lower rates. The directors were of the view that the GMS should focus on the goal of examining needs and concerns of both women and men as a means of addressing the issue of undervaluing men's work by women in the fisheries sector.
- It was also argued that the empowerment process should be for both women and men so that both can work together in an equitable fashion to develop the fisheries industry. The need to consider the current state of the fishing industry to ensure that men are also empowered to be co-financiers with women of fishing expeditions was recommended.
- Participants accepted that when it comes to decision making, the women are not adequately and sufficiently involved. The need to promote equal participation of women in decision-making in the sector was therefore seen as a strategy that needed speeding up. The Ministry has so far had women Minsters and it was felt that this was one way of making a deliberate effort to increase women's involvement in decision-making.
- The need to have a follow-up meeting with the new Gender Expert attached to MOFAD was called for. So was the need for the tools of M&E to be developed and shared to promote gender sensitivity.
- Behavioural change is essential in the fisheries sector, especially amongst the women as they need to strengthen their group formation and networking relationships to enhance their collective decision-making power.
- Capacity building support for NAFPTA is critical but it must be managed in such a way that the association is not over-dependent on MOFAD.
- Staffing is a necessity. Since it is a Ministry, there is the need for many field officers who should frequently engage with the fishers.

2.3 Action Plan of the GMS and Group Exercise

The second day of the workshop was devoted to a presentation of the Action Plan of the GMS followed by group exercise.³ Participants were convinced that the Action Plan was directly related to the key elements of the GMS. Therefore the group exercise was basically to enable them make additional inputs to strengthen the GMS and the Action Plan.⁴ Three groups were formed and assigned to respond to only one main question. The issues and responses per group is presented below:

GROUP 1

QUESTION: As Directors in the Fisheries Sector, what will we commit to doing concretely to enhance ownership and implementation of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS)?

RESPONSES

- As Directors we will propose the application of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategies (GMS) in the formulation of policies.
- We will incorporate gender issues during planning, budgeting and implementation of programs.
- We will promote equitable representation of women in all fisheries activities.
- We also advocate for gender desks in all regional offices.

GROUP 2

QUESTION: In terms of promoting gender responsiveness in the Fisheries Sector, what additional activities do we consider to be extremely critical for inclusion in the action plan of GMS?

RESPONSES

- Include family planning and sexual and reproductive health rights issues in collaboration with other stakeholders. Family planning education should be focused on the household.
- Gender responsive programmes to check pollution should be highlighted.
- Gender responsive programmes to check illegal fishing is crucial.
- Review Fisheries policies regularly to include gender sensitive issues.
- Recruitment should include equal opportunities for both men and women extension officers in fisheries.
- Training of trainers is very important. The need for training of trainers for the fisheries staff to understand gender issues for replication in various areas all over the country was emphasised. It was pointed out that a TOT had already been organised in 2017.
- Work towards removing cultural and traditional barriers that hinder gender sensitivity in collaboration with Chiefs and other opinion leaders. Such barriers include: widowhood rites, gender insensitive land tenure system and lack of male commitment to family planning.
 - Additional livelihood initiatives should be institutionalised.

³ See Action Plan in Annex12.

⁴ See Group Work Questions in Annex 2.

- Credit facilities should also be in place to benefit both women and men equally
- The need to provide insurance cover for both women and men in fisheries was also mentioned.

GROUP 3

QUESTION: In five years from now, what do we want to see in the Fisheries Sector in terms of the situation of women and men at the different levels of the value chain?

RESPONSES:

- Catch and Landing/Production improved to benefit both women and men
- Equal representation of women and men on premix committees
- Improved fishing facilities along the whole value chain to benefit both women and men
- Aquaculture enhanced through credit facilities and gender sensitive land tenure systems
- All sea going vessels would move with ice to ensure that fish remains fresh to enhance value-addition for both women and men.
- Illegal trans-shipment of fish would be stopped
- Women friendly cold storage facilities provided.
- Development of gender sensitive landing sites
- Efficient transportation system including vans in place, thereby eliminating head porterage of fish.
- Modern and gender responsive technologies for processing in place
- Gender mainstreaming undertaken along the whole fisheries value chain
- Improved marketing structures to ensure men and women participate in marketing equally
- Education and training of women and men on fisheries issues

3. LESSONS LEARNED

The use of external consultants with gender expertise proved to be very useful in terms of planning and facilitating the training sessions. The participants were directors who have power to make decisions at the different levels of the fisheries institutions. Yet they were willing to listen to the voice of someone who does not work in their sector but who they considered to be credible in terms of the expertise on gender and development as whole.

Relatedly, the value of learning on gender issues was also enhanced as the directors had been drawn from several offices in the country's fisheries sector. This enhanced interaction and sharing of experiences. The role of the SNV also added legitimacy to the training and helped participants to feel that the time they were investing in the training was worthwhile.

While highlights of the specific ways in which men in the fisheries sector are disadvantaged was discussed, there was consensus about the high level of gender inequalities experienced by women in the sector at all levels. The need to address gender specific inequalities with emphasis on women's needs and concerns was therefore stressed. The men who were in the majority were extremely interested in this and supported the idea of prioritising the integration of gender issues in the program of the fisheries sector. Their perspectives on the issues being considered points to the importance of building a cadre of male champions with decision making powers in the implementation of the GMS.

The brainstorming session facilitated a process whereby key gender terms and language were discussed and clarified in a non-threatening way at the start of the training. This created a common foundation of 'gender understanding' among participants that is conducive to interaction.

The participatory and experience-based approach of the training was also found to be the most effective way to get participants to internalise new information. This approach enabled the participants to build a sense of trust and competence with gender issues. Participants were actively engaged in the training as they were given the opportunity to develop, during the session, a 'product' that they will be able to use when they go back to their workplaces. The information generated through the group work session on recommendations for the GMS is such a product.

Participants were very appreciative of the handout on 'key gender terms' as a resource material provided.⁵

⁵ See Annex 3.

4. CONCLUSION

Mainstreaming gender in the fisheries sector is a step in the right direction to ensure that the gender inequalities embedded in the fishing value chain is addressed to promote and protect the interest of women and men as equal economic actors in the chain. The consultants understand the solid foundation laid by the SFMP through gendered interventions including the development of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS) for the fisheries sector. For the consultants, the training will assist the national and regional staff of MOFAD/FC to better identify, understand, and explain gaps between males and females that exist, and the relevance of gender norms and power relations within the sector. In addition, it will equip the staff with the requisite skills and gender lens to facilitate their work in ensuring that the GMS achieve its intended outcomes. Achieving gender equality and upholding the human rights of women and girls entail addressing the root causes of marginalisation, poverty and inequality which are endemic to the current social order. The assignment if effectively executed will help address some level of gender inequalities within the fishing value chain in order to create an enabling environment for women's empowerment through active participation of women and girls as envisaged by the SFMP program.

Gender training increases demands and expectations of the Sector Gender Focal Point. Resources need to be foreseen to respond to the demands for gender technical assistance that gender training and advocacy generate. Maximizing the benefit of these training workshops can be done in many ways. Among them: refresher trainings or discussions; recognition of employees who perform well in advancing gender equality, institutionalising the use of the gender tools developed in the workshops.

In this connection, it is hoped that the directors of the various institutions of MOFAD/FC will provide leadership towards effective implementation of the GMS for an enhanced gender responsive fisheries sector in Ghana.

ANNEXES

ANNEX 1. GMS ACTION PLAN

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE	SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES	ACTIVITIES	EXPECTED OUTCOMES	TIME- LINES	INSTITU- TIONS RESPONSI- BLE	KEY COLLABORA- TORS AND PARTNERS	BUDGET (GHS)
1. Restructure MOFAD/FC's program work and cooperation with stakeholders in the fisheries sector from a gender perspective	 1.1 Integrate GMS into MOFAD's goals, structures, management systems, working practices, processes and programs 1.2 Carry out gender review of program with stakeholders 	 1.1 Carry out gender review of all MOFAD/FC programs 1.2 Develop a gender program for MOFAD/FC 1.3 Design gender sensitive indicators for impact assessment 	Gender mainstreamed as integral part of policies and programs Key stakeholders aware of MOFAD/FC gender responsive programs	2017	MOFAD/FC	Key actors and identifiable groups in the fisheries value chain	3 000,000.00
2. Strengthen gender mainstreaming capacity at policy and implementation levels of the fisheries value chain	2.1 Train management and staff in gender issues to have the knowledge, attitude, values and skills needed for their respective field of work	2.1 Gender training for management and staff2.2 Creation of Gender Unit of MOFAD	Strengthened capacity of management and staff on gender issues Gender Unit Created	2017-2018	MOFAD/FC	Ministry of Gender, Children and Social Protection (MoGCSP) Gender Departments of	5,000,000.00

Table 1. GMS ACTION PLAN

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE	SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES	ACTIVITIES	EXPECTED OUTCOMES	TIME- LINES	INSTITU- TIONS RESPONSI- BLE	KEY COLLABORA- TORS AND PARTNERS	BUDGET (GHS)
	2.2 Collaborate and support gender mainstreaming efforts in relation to stakeholders at all levels of the value chain	 2.3 Identify and appoint Gender Desk Officer for FC and provide the requisite gender training for the officer 2.4 Build capacity of stakeholders on gender issues 	Designated Officer with gender background Enhanced capacity of stakeholders on gender issues			Academic Institutions CSOs working on gender equality and women's rights issues	
3. Create an enabling environment to enhance the process of gender responsive fisheries management to ensure women and men have equal opportunities as fisheries decision- makers and co- managers	 3.1 Provide equal participation of women and men in fisheries decision making and management 3.2 Provide equitable representation of women on fisheries bodies to enhance women's voice in the 	 3.1 Facilitate the creation of gender sensitive processes and interventions 3.2 Establish quotas for women to enhance their equal participation with men in decision-making 	Women and men as co- managers in fisheries management	2017-2022	Gender Unit of MOFAD/FC Women and Men Fisheries Association CSOs working in the fisheries sector	Development Partners	6,000,000.00

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE	SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES	ACTIVITIES	EXPECTED OUTCOMES	TIME- LINES	INSTITU- TIONS RESPONSI- BLE	KEY COLLABORA- TORS AND PARTNERS	BUDGET (GHS)
	fisheries value	and as co-					
4. Strengthen capacities	chain 4.1 Integrate	managers 4.1 Review	Gender-	2017-2022	Women and	CSOs	5,000,000.00
of women and men	gender	structures and	responsive and	2017-2022	Men Fisheries	0.508	5,000,000.00
fisheries associations	responsiveness in	functions of	transparent		Associations	Development	
including CSOs to	all policies,	fisheries	structures			Partners	
manage their affairs	programs and	associations and	created for		MOFAD/FC		
using gender	processes of	bodies from a	equitable				
responsive	fisheries	gender	decision-				
organisational and networking processes	associations and bodies	perspective	making				
		4.2 Support	Strengthened				
		Women and Men	leadership and				
		Fisheries	management				
		Associations to	skills				
		strengthen their	Collective				
		structures and leadership skills	platform for				
		leadership skins	women and				
			men fisheries				
			associations				
			created				
5. Improve the fisheries	5.1 Strengthen the	5.1 Provide	Best fishing	2018 - 2022	MOFAD/FC	Ministry of	10,000,000.00
value (through	role of women,	access to clean	practices			Environment,	
technological	youth and	energy	adapted by		Women and	Science,	
innovation and	marginalised	technologies and	women and		Men Fisheries	Technology and	
infrastructures, finance	groups in the	services to	men in the		Associations	Innovation	
and research) and	fisheries sector		fisheries sector				

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE	SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES	ACTIVITIES	EXPECTED OUTCOMES	TIME- LINES	INSTITU- TIONS RESPONSI- BLE	KEY COLLABORA- TORS AND PARTNERS	BUDGET (GHS)
provide post-harvest	through	women			CSOs	(MESTI) and its	
training and technical	improvement in	processors	Enhanced			sector agencies	
know-how to women	their operations,		fishing				
and men engaged	cash incomes and	5.2 Provide	activities skills			GRATIS	
directly and indirectly	livelihoods	training in fish	acquired				
in the fisheries sector	5.0.4.11	processing	T 11			Development	
	5.2 Address	technology,	Enabling			Partners	
	specific needs and	finance and	environment				
	concerns of	business	created for				
	women, men and	management	women and				
	youth on an equal basis in the	5.3 Facilitate and	men to access opportunities in				
	fisheries sector	provide facilities	the fisheries				
	fisheries sector	and resources	sector equally				
		including	sector equally				
		information on	Special				
		opportunities	interventions				
		including export	created for				
		and support	women to				
		women and men	access				
		to access such	opportunities in				
		opportunities	the fisheries				
			sector				
6. Strengthen	6.2 Facilitate	6.1 Develop	Gender-	2017–	MOFAD/FC	Research and	10,000,000.00
knowledge creation and	women's active	gender	Responsive	2022	and Women	Academic	
information	participation in	mainstreaming	M&E tools		and Men	Institutions	
management of the	knowledge	knowledge,	developed		Fisheries		
fisheries sector through	creation and	information			Associations		

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE	SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES	ACTIVITIES	EXPECTED OUTCOMES	TIME- LINES	INSTITU- TIONS RESPONSI- BLE	KEY COLLABORA- TORS AND PARTNERS	BUDGET (GHS)
gender responsive monitoring and evaluation	information management of the fisheries sector	management and reporting mechanisms 6.2 Design gender sensitive indicators and tools for monitoring and evaluation Integrate enumeration of women and youth in surveys in the fisheries sector	Up-to-date data on progress of GMS in the fisheries sector Existence of gender responsive data in the fisheries sector			MDAs and MMDAs CSOs	

ANNEX 2. GROUP WORK QUESTIONS AND PICTURES

QUESTION 1:

As Directors in the Fisheries Sector, what will we commit to doing concretely to enhance ownership and implementation of the Gender Mainstreaming Strategy (GMS)?

QUESTION 2:

In terms of promoting gender responsiveness in the Fisheries Sector, what additional activities do we consider to be extremely critical for inclusion in the action plan of GMS?

QUESTION 3:

In five years from now, what do we want to see in the Fisheries Sector in terms of the situation of women and men at the different levels of the value chain?



Figure 1. Cross section of participants



Figure 2. Participants in a group work session

ANNEX 3. TERMINOLOGIES USED IN THE GENDER MAINSTREAMING STRATEGY (GMS)

GENDER – "Refers to the social attributes and opportunities associated with being male or female; and the relationships between women and men, girls and boys, as well as the relations between women and those between men. These attributes, opportunities and relationships are socially constructed and are learned through socialisation processes. They are context/time-specific and changeable. Gender determines what is expected, allowed and valued in women or men in a given context. In most societies there are differences and inequalities between women and men in responsibilities assigned, activities undertaken, access to and control over resources, as well as decision-making opportunities. Gender is part of the broader socio-cultural context. Other important criteria for socio-cultural analysis include class, race, poverty level, ethnic group and age"

GENDER EQUALITY – "Refers to the equal rights, responsibilities and opportunities of women and men; and girls and boys. Equality does not mean that women and men will become the same but that women's and men's rights, responsibilities and opportunities will not depend on whether they are born male or female. Gender equality implies that the interests, needs and priorities of both women and men are taken into consideration – recognising the diversity of different groups of women and men. Gender equality is not a "women's issue" but should concern and fully engage men as well as women. Equality between women and men are seen both as a human rights issue and as a precondition for, and indicator of sustainable people-centered development."

GENDER MAINSTREAMING - "Mainstreaming a gender perspective is the process of assessing the implication for women and men of any planned action, including legislation, policies or programs, in an integral dimension of the design, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of policies and programs in all political, economic and societal spheres so that women and men benefit equally and inequality is not perpetuated. The ultimate goal is to achieve gender equality."

WOMEN'S RIGHTS - "The human rights of women and of the girl-child are an inalienable, integral and indivisible part of universal human rights. The full and equal participation of women in political, civil, economic, social and cultural life, at the national, regional and international levels and the eradication of all forms of discrimination on grounds of sex are priority objectives of the international community."

WOMEN'S EMPOWERMENT – "Women's empowerment has five components: Women's sense of self-worth; right to have and to determine choices; their right to have access to opportunities and resources; their right to have the power to control their lives, both within and outside the home; and their ability to influence the direction of social change to create a more just social and economic order, nationally and internationally."

GENDER PARITY – "Equal numbers of men and women at all levels of the organisation. It must include significant participation of both men and women, particularly at senior levels. Gender parity is one of several integral mechanisms for improving effectiveness."